[image: image1.wmf]
CAL HENDERSON, SHERIFF




 


Hillsborough County






 

Tampa, Florida

SUBJECT: 
RFP 14-04 – Wireless System and/ Services

ADDENDUM: 
Number Six
DATE:
  
July 8, 2004

MESSAGE:   

This is a list of all questions and answers asked during the pre-proposal conference and facility/site visit that occurred on July 6, 2004 and July 7, 2004.  Some of the questions and answers may not be exact quotes as stated verbally, but rather communicate the same information as the question was asked and the answer was provided.  The questions and answers are grouped by the vendor and person who asked the question, and are not in the order that they were asked.
Additionally, there are several items provided by the HCSO for the purpose of clarification.

Hillsborough County Sheriff's Office
Clarification Items
	SECTION
	CLARIFICATION ITEMS

	
	Item 1:

There have been several questions regarding the 200 kilobytes of data per user per hour, what type of data it is, how to measure, etc.  The following is to clarify how vendors should treat the 200 kilobytes of data.

The Proposer should treat the 200 kilobytes of data per user per hour as raw data required to be transmitted over the air.  The data should be treated as already compressed and thus is not compressible.  The 200 kilobytes of data is the raw data size and does not include any protocol overhead such as for TCP, IP, or any other protocols in use by the Proposer’s system.
The 200 kilobytes of data per user per hour is a combination of uplink and downlink data flows for a given user.  The ratio of downlink to uplink data will be random from user to user but looking at the overall average, downlink data will be more than the uplink data.  The Proposer should consider a ratio with a minimum of 70% downlink to 30% of uplink data.  The Proposer is welcome to provide additional details and profiles in their Proposal.
Item 2:

There was a question raised about bandwidth calculations and the inclusion of such items as 802.11 bandwidth using hot spots.  It is very important that the Proposer understand that the HCSO is seeking a wide area wireless network.  All bandwidth and coverage calculations are to be based upon the wide area network only.  The Proposer is not to include any hot spot concepts such as 802.11 in the bandwidth and/or coverage calculations.  If the Proposer has a true hybrid wide area wireless network that they are proposing, then the bandwidth and coverage calculations are to be done using the slowest or worst case scenario components of the hybrid network.
Item 3:

The North Central and Fire Station #20 are the same site.  Depending on the documentation, it may be labeled as one or the other.
Item 4:

Reference the Taylor Road site, the old tower (painted red and white) will eventually be removed. The new tower, located to the north of the old tower will become the primary tower moving forward.

Item 5:

Reference the Pinecrest site, the current tower is 180 feet tall but can be extended up to 260 feet.  This was based on information when the tower was initially constructed.  If the extension is to be used by the Proposer, then the Propser will be responsible for structural analysis for extending the tower.
Item 6: 
The HCSO Firearms Training Center (aka Pistol Range) is not a site on the current EDACS system.  This location can be used for a site if necessary to fulfill the requirements of the RFP, however note that there is no infrastructure located at this location.  The address for this site is 14063 HW 39 S, Lithia, FL 33547.


Craig MacBeth


Motorola
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

When will a copy of questions be posted?
Answer 1: 

On July 2, 2004, a copy of all questions (with answers) received by July 2, 2004, were posted.  The goal is to post these questions and answers by Friday of this week.
Question 2: 

In relation to the vehicle, what equipment does the vendor need to supply (modems, docking stations, computers, etc.)?

Answer 2:

The vendor only needs to supply the devices for wireless connectivity.  No other equipment such as laptops, docking stations, etc. is needed. 
Question 3:

What is the budget for this project?

Answer 3:

Funding has been set aside for this project, but there is no specific budget number at this time.


Dave Birarda


IP Mobilenet
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

In regards to the waters of Tampa Bay, how far south is coverage required? 

Answer 1: 

Coverage is required to the Sunshine Skyway Bridge.
Question 2: 

Reference the 200 kilobytes per hour per user, is this the peak or the average usage?

Answer 2:

This is hard to tell as we do not have a system capable of this today.  For the purpose of the RFP, this should be handled as the maximum or peak value.
Question 3:

Reference the 200 kilobytes per hour per user, is this uplink or downlink or aggregrate?

Answer 3:

This should be considered an aggregate of both uplink and downlink.
Question 4:
What is the split between uplink and downlink? 
Answer 4:

We expect the Proposer to use their experience; however the Proposer should outline the details in their response.
The Proposer should consider a ratio with a minimum of 70% downlink to 30% of uplink data.  The Proposer is welcome to provide additional details and profiles in their Proposal.

Question 5:

Do you run one or two-man vehicles? 
Answer 5: 

The standard is a one-man vehicle. We do have two-man vehicles for specific situations such as: training; saturations; etc.  The key is not to plan on consuming the front passenger seat with equipment.

Question 6:

Is it fair to assume the deputies are in motion most of the time? 
Answer 6: 

Most of the time they are in motion but for example when they do traffic stops, we want them to use DAVID/DLIRS, pull images for driver’s licenses, etc.  This is not strictly text messaging in the traditional sense of dispatching.  Our agency wants to move forward with using greater data bandwidth.  We would like to at some point be able to upload images from the car, not megabits of data as in a broadband solution, but rather smaller picture files.

Question 7:

Reference the RFP, there was an indication about available frequencies.  How many frequencies are there? 
Answer 7:

We do not have a set number of frequencies set aside for this purpose at this time, we are leaving it to the vendors to tell us what the frequencies are and what the needs are in order to meet the requirements of the RFP.
Question 8:

Has the source of funding been identified?  What is the source?  
Answer 8:

The source of funding has been identified.  The source is coming from the HCSO budget.

Question 9:

Reference the Radio Shop, will the Proposer’s be installing in this facility? 

Answer 9:

Plan on using the Radio Shop facility as well as the possibility of some installation occurring in a parking lot environment.

Question 10:

Reference the Cork Knight Road site, was this site constructed originally for the EDACS system project?

Answer 10:

Yes.

Question 11:

Reference the Plant City site, what is the second building used for? Can the old building be reused?

Answer 11: 

It is the old building which was left after the new building was built for the new EDACS system project.  The old building can be used if it is properly equipped.


Gray Rittenburg


DataRadio
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

From the Phase 2 New Architecture, how does it require the 200 kilobytes of data traffic?

Answer 1: 

The system needs move beyond the traditional message model such as traditional law enforcement messaging, it allows for light web browsing and the ability to transmit and receive images.

Question 2: 

Will you use CJNET?
Answer 2:

Yes, we will be using CJNet to access such systems as DAVID/DLIRS for driver license information and photos.
Question 3:

Is Drivers license reading software/scanning software for photos a necessity? 

Answer 3:

No.  These features are under consideration but will be incorporated into our CAD system.
Question 4:

If you assume a hybrid system using the 802.11 hotspot infrastructure, then the Proposer may declare compliance for the bandwidth requirement when they really are not compliant.  Is that acceptable?

Answer 4:

It is not acceptable.  The 802.11 option is not to be included in the bandwidth requirements.  Please see HCSO clarification item on this subject at the beginning of this document.
Question 5:

If the county does not own the frequencies outright, is that a problem?  For example, would the county consider leasing frequencies from other organizations?
Answer 5:

We have not considered this option previously.  We would have to evaluate this further and make sure that this is in compliance with the FCC.  If it is something you are familiar with and want to propose as an option, please go ahead.  However, note that we are not going to put ourselves in a position where we are leasing the frequencies for a year or two and then are held hostage by a vendor.
Question 6:

Have all of the MDTs been replaced?
Answer 6:

We have completed all dispatch units.  The only units remaining to be done are back office personnel such as Detectives and Community Resource Deputies. We are in the process of identifying equipment for those positions.

Question 7:

Will everything be IP based?

Answer 7:

Yes.  The Proposer is not expected to support dumb terminals. 

Question 8:

In the RFP, the HCSO mentions portable computer requirements?

Answer 8:

This requirement is to allow the HCSO the most options for portability.  We are asking the Proposer to identify what devices they offer and if they have a portable solution that would allow someone to roam about away from the vehicle with a laptop that is still connected to the wireless network.  An example of this would be for mounted units, marine unit, bicycle type officers, and special events such as the State Fair.  

The portable options are optional and to be used in addition to the standard mobile options installed in a vehicle.
Question 9:

Is the primary vehicle a Crown Victoria?

Answer 9:

For patrol, the primary vehicle is a Crown Victoria.  In addition, we have unmarked units that are as follows: Dodge Intrepid, Ford Taurus, Chevrolet Luminas, Ford F-250 Super Duty Pickups, Ford Explorer, and Ford Expeditions.
Question 10:

Does Versaterm have a records system?  Is the HCSO going to convert their existing data? 

Answer 10:

The Records Management System is brand new from Versaterm. We are not going to convert any legacy data, all data must be active.  There is very little of the current data that is useful.

Question 11:

What type of data will make up the 200 kilobytes per hour per car? 

Answer 11:

The 200 kilobytes requirement is not data specific and should be considered the raw data throughput without adding compression.  The Proposer should not design around a specific application or data type.
Question 12:

Reference the EOC site, is the tower fully loaded? 
Answer 12:

There will have to be an analysis done depending on what the Proposer wants to add to the tower.


Jim Lane


Microwave Data
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

Is streaming video being considered as a data requirement and if so, then at what rate of frames per second?

Answer 1: 

We do not require streaming video support in the RFP requirements.  We have not seen this used in a wide area wireless network yet.  If the Proposer’s solution can provide it, then great.


Bill Worth


Verizon Wireless
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	Page 29, 2.2.2.10 Installation

Page 31, 2.2.3 Testing Plan and Methodology


	Question 1: 

Is HCSO willing to negotiate separately with a systems integrator who can perform installations and training?

Answer 1: 

The HCSO will consider all Proposals.  However, preference will be given to a vendor that provides a complete solution.

Question 2:

Will the HCSO be performing the testing and methodology, or is HCSO requiring each carrier to perform these functions?

Answer 2:
The HCSO will perform the final acceptance testing and methodology with the preferred cooperation of the Proposer.  The carriers will be responsible for demonstrating that their system meets the requirements of the RFP.

Question 3:

In regards to site/facilities visits, do we need to attend if we are already setup? 

Answer 3:

If you do not feel the need to attend the site/facilities visit, then you do not have to.

Question 4:

Can HCSO provide a document listing the locations so that we can import into mapping software?  Also, can HCSO provide latitude and longitude for each location?

Answer 4:

A separate addendum was provided that is a list of all of the locations listed in Appendix C.  The separate addendum was not write protected and thus will allow copying and pasting.  

The HCSO cannot provide the latitude and longitude for each location.

Question 5:

If the vendor has software to assist with testing, can the vendor supply software for testing?

Answer 5:

Yes.
Question 6:

Is there connectivity circuit(s) into HCSO’s network?  Can the Proposer provide different circuits available – i.e. T1, etc.?  Where is the message switch located and is the access point available?
Answer 6:
Yes, there is connectivity into the HCSO network.  The Proposer should provide what circuits would be necessary to connect to the HCSO network, including any required for redundancy.  The Proposer should provide pricing for those circuits to the 2008 E. 8th Avenue address if their Proposed solution requires the circuits.

Question 7:

Question about the Hillsborough County Sheriffs Office RFP No . 14-04  is it looking for a turnkey end-to-end solution provider, or can we submit a response for wireless products and services only?

Answer 7:

A Proposer can submit a response for wireless products and services only.  However, preference will be given to a vendor that provides a complete solution.

If you are a systems provider and want to propose as an option a service based arrangement such as the State of Florida Radio System, then please propose that as an option.


Bruce McCausland

IBM
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

In the car with the new setup, what is the need for considering mobile devices for the laptop outside the car; how does that apply? 

Answer 1:

This requirement is to allow the HCSO the most options for portability.  We are asking the Proposer to identify what devices they offer and if they have a portable solution that would allow someone to roam about away from the vehicle with a laptop that is still connected to the wireless network.  An example of this would be for mounted units, marine unit, bicycle type officers, and special events such as the State Fair.  

The portable options are optional and to be used in addition to the standard mobile options installed in a vehicle.
Question 2:

Does Tampa Police Department use Versaterm?
Answer 2: 

Yes, however the HCSO did our own research through the RFP process and arrived at the same system decision without any consideration that TPD already uses the Versaterm System.


David Curry

Microwave Data
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

What is the County’s expected number of vehicles in one area? 

Answer 1: 

The user load, other than urban areas, is pretty distributed.  However, the easiest method is to expect the user load to be evenly distributed.  The HCSO expects the Proposer to provide an explanation of user load ramping up and the effects bandwidth expectations.
Question 2: 

Is this what a typical trunk of a patrol Crown Victoria looks like?
Answer 2: 

Yes, but stacked with file folders and equipment.  It is safe to assume the space in the trunk over the gas tank and to the left of the spare tire is available for equipment mounting.  Most of the vehicles will have the Ford trunk pack/liner/shield installed as well.
Question 3: 

Is there aircraft involved?

Answer 3: 

The HCSO does have aircraft, but we do not require them as a primary platform for mobile data.
Question 4: 

Reference the 78th Street facility, it this facility manned?

Answer 4: 

Most everyday, someone is there for some purpose at some point during the day.

Question 5: 

Regarding the current microwave data system – what is the capacity?
Answer 5: 

That is to be determined.  We need the Proposer to provide their perspective and analysis of the system. It is up to the vendor to identify what they feel the HCSO needs to have to support their proposed solution.

Question 6: 

Reference the Emergency Dispatch Operations Center – is the second tower available for use?

Answer 6: 

No, the second tower is not available for use.
Question 7:

Is the current system mission critical? Is the new system mission critical? 

Answer 7:

Yes, the current system is mission critical.  Yes, the new system will be mission critical.

Question 8:

Will the existing system stay in use?

Answer 8:

The existing EDACS system will stay in use for primarily voice needs.

Question 9:

At the two sites, there were open racks for equipment; can they be used? 

Answer 9:

The Proposer should include the cost for racks to hold their equipment. Once a Proposer is selected, then we may negotiate to use some existing racks is appropriate.

Question 10:

Reference the Bullfrog Creek site, at a site that has a full equipment shelter can an outdoor enclosure adjacent to existing enclosure be used to house the Proposer’s equipment?  Can the use of the existing infrastructure power / UPS be used from the existing enclosure?
Answer 10:

Yes, an outdoor enclosure can be used as long as it meets the needs for the Proposer’s equipment.  The existing power can be used as long as it has available capacity.


Paul Riebock

Netmotion Wireless
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

Will you allow optional plans as long as the meet criteria?

Answer 1: 

Yes, as long they meet the criteria and are real, practical, and tangible. 

Question 2: 

What laptop ports will be available?

Answer 2:
The laptops have a single PCMCIA slot, serial, USB, and Ethernet ports.


Rick Nelson


Trillion Digital
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

Will the HCSO consider separate proposals for system components such as microwave?
Answer 1: 

We are not looking for items to be a stand-alone proposal, so preference will be given to a vendor that provides a complete solution.  We would suggest reviewing the list of vendors attending the pre-proposal conference and partnering with one of them.


David Owen

Motorola
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

What is the number of sworn personnel?  How many miles does the HCSO cover?
Answer 1: 

Funded staff for the current fiscal year includes: 1,173 for Enforcement (sworn), 853 for Detention, 1,253 Civilian, and 117 court services certified positions.

Hillsborough County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, is located on the west coast of Florida and encompasses 1,072 square miles of which 932 comprise the unincorporated area of the County.

Question 2:

Reference the 78th Street site, what is the capacity on the UPS?

Answer 2:

There is a 100kw generator on site.  However, we need to perform a study of the selected Proposer’s equipment and then determine what is available at the current sites.  For proposal purposes, the Proposer should tell the HCSO what is required for their equipment.


Unknown


Unknown
	SECTION
	QUESTION AND ANSWER

	
	Question 1: 

Reference the Sheriff’s Operations Center, is there high speed network throughout the building?

Answer 1: 

Yes, there is a 10/100 Ethernet LAN installed throughout he Sheriff’s Operation Center building.
Question 2:

What is the mobile application and the current status of integration?

Answer 2:

The current system in use was built to replace the DXT functionality in the cars.  The current laptop software does nothing more or less than the old DXT dumb terminals; it just looks better and is easier to user. 

The new CAD system will change over in November.  After that, the Records Management System (RMS) and Field Reporting phases will start. The vendor currently being implemented is Versaterm.  Versaterm’s products are IP based. 
Question 3:

What web based capabilities are required?

Answer 3:

The HCSO requires basic web site access capabilities.  The purpose of the web site access will be to run text based inquires, receive test based responses, and to download and upload small image files (typically in the 30 kilobyte to 80 kilobyte range.) 


